Q&A

VIQRC 2023-2024: Full Volume

Welcome to the official VEX 1Q Robotics Competition Question & Answer system, where all registered teams have the
opportunity to ask for official rules interpretations and clarifications. This Q&A system is the only source for official VIQRC
Full Volume rules clarifications, and the clarifications made here from the Game Design Committee (GDC) are considered
as official and binding as the written Game Manual itself.

Please review the Q&A Usage Guidelines before posting. This system is only intended for specific VIQRC Full Volume rules
questions.

e For event, registration, or other competition support questions, please contact your REC Foundation Manager.
e For VEX technical support, contact support@vex.com or sales@vex.com.
e For game questions, suggestions, or concerns outside of specific and official rules questions, contact
GDC@vex.com
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Driving the Robot while one team member ("non-active driver") is outside of the Driver Station

1-Nov-2023
G8 G10 SG3

<G10><G8><G10> Allows for driver interaction with ("rescuing") the robot under certain circumstances. To do so, they
must signal the Referee by placing their Vex 1Q Controller on the ground. If the non-active driver is the one who leaves the
Driver Station to "rescue" the robot, once the robot has been "rescued” and prior to the non-active driver returning to the
Driver Station is the active driver allowed to pick up the Controller and start driving the robot? If not, when Blocks leave
the field <SG3>, if the non-driver leaves the Driver Station to place a block that has left the field into the Supply Zone, is
the active driver allowed to continue to drive the robot?

Answered by committee

Thank you for your questions! Based on the requirements in rule <G10> the active Driver can resume driving once

their Robot has been returned to a legal starting position, providing the Driver switch is correctly made as described
in rule <G11>.

The active Driver may continue operating the Robot while the non-active Driver returns a Block to the field. Rule

<G8> will be revised in an upcoming game manual update to correctly reflect that Drivers may leave the Driver
Station to return a Block to the Supply Zone as per rule <SG3>.

Accidentally Knocking Off Red Block
2-Nov-2023
G10 T8

According to the rules, a red block is considered scored if it is removed from the starting peg at the end of the match.

Removed — A red Block status. A red Block is considered Removed if it is no longer fully supported by a
Starting Peg at the end of the Match.

What should be the result of a red block being accidentally knocked off the starting peg, either by a student interacting
with their robot as allowed by <G10> or by bumping the edge of the field?

This should obviously be a DQ for the team that caused the red block to be removed. But based on <QA1697> it seems
like the non-offending team should still get the points for the red block being removed. Is that the correct resolution?

Answered by committee

You are correct. If a Driver accidentally knocks a red Block off of its starting peg while interacting with the Robot or
the Field, it should be handled as a Score Affecting Violation of rule <G9> and the Team should receive a Major
Violation and Disqualification for the Match.

If the Disqualification occurs in a Qualifying Match, their Alliance Partner should receive the points for the red Block

being removed. If the Disqualification occurs in a Finals Match, both Teams in the Alliance will be Disqualified as
described in rule <T8>.

Students on VIQC and VRC teams and compete on same day

30-Oct-2023
G4
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<G4>

| have 2 students on one of my VEX IQ Challenge teams who are also in an outside of school VRC team. We have a
competition on Nov 11th that has been confirmed. This tournament will have VIQC and VRC competing at it. Both of their
different teams are competing on that same day. It is different divisions (one is MS VIQC and the other is HS VRC). |
know the rule is they can't be on two teams within the same division, but this is slightly different.

Will they be able to compete at the tournament under 2 different divisions? Or will they have to choose?

Answered by committee

The rules for VIQRC and VRC teams do not prohibit a Student from participating in both competitions.

However, in the situation you've described (in which a Student is on VIQRC and VRC Teams that are competing at
the same event), students (especially Drive Team Members) should be expected to choose which Team they are
competing with for the duration of that event. “Our driver is in a VIQRC Match” would not be considered an
acceptable justification for being late to a VRC Match (or vice-versa).

VRC and VIQRC team member
7-Nov-2023
G4

Hi, our academy has both VRC and VIQRC teams. One of the student would like to play in both games. So is it possible
for him to participate in the two different competitions?

Answered by committee

Yes, this would be legal as long as the Student meets the age requirements in the definitions of Student for each
program.

Robot Sizing Tool vs G5

23-Oct-2023
G5

<G5>

G5 limits length to 20 inches this year but the Robot Sizing Tool and assembly instructions are set to 19 inches still.
Will you provide revised assembly instructions to ensure robots are consistently inspected at tournaments?

Answered by committee

Thank you for bringing this to our attention. Updated instructions are now available:
https://www.vexrobotics.com/228-5293.html#attr-vex _docs downloads

Many implications of Robot parts falling into a Goal

7-Oct-2023
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G6

The following happened during practice: part of the robot broke off and fell into the Goal. Many questions arose which
later generated some discussion among the mentor/coaches in our organization. We believe these are not fully addressed
in the Game Manual:

Does this situation:

Disqualify all/any of the Blocks already in the Goal?

Affect Uniform bonuses?

Affect current or future Height bonuses?

Affect the ability for the Driver to "collect" the detached Part as graciously allowed by <G6>7?

PwbdE

Our thoughts are:

1. No Blocks are excluded from Scoring solely because of the broken off Part due to <SC3>: the Part is no longer
considered part of the Robot per <G6>, thus <G10> doesn't apply. Blocks in the Goal are not being "controlled" by
the Robot, so Blocks don't have to be removed from the Goal. However, if the Part prevents <SC3>'s transitive rule
(breaks the contiguous connection from block-to-floor), then that does affect scoring. For example, you have Block
A touching the floor, then the Robot Part, then Block B on it. If Block B is not touching Block A, then it doesn't not
count as scored. We'd argue that if the two Blocks are touching each other, despite the Robot Part, then it counts
as transitively touching the floor. For the same reason the transitive rule applies even if the Block is touching, say,
the walls of the Goal itself.

2. No, it should not affect the Uniform Bonus: the scenario satisfies <SC4>. Philosophically, the disconnected Part
doesn't invalidate or make unfair the efforts of teams to keep the Goal Uniform. However, a rules clarification on
this point might be a good idea.

3. This one's a tough one. A Robot Part occupies volume, potentially a lot of volume, and thus could make it easier
for teams to achieve the Height Bonus, perhaps unfairly so. We propose that the definition of Fill Level 2 and 3
under Game Specific Definitions should perhaps updated to note that the Goal must be occupied solely by
Blocks. Thus, a Robot Part invalidates Height 2 and 3 bonuses. But Height 1 bonus is retained. Such a rule
update has the unfortunate effect of invalidating the hard efforts by teams during Teamwork matches to achieve
Height >1 bonuses - but such is the hazard of designing a delicate bot?

EDIT 2023-10-08: One additional consideration: what if the Robot Part does not add any significant volume? For
example, a single 1x2 connector pin falls into the Goal? Since there is a spectrum of possible Robot Part sizes which can
affect Scoring, any rule clarifications may need to specify that the part's presence actually affects the score at the end of
the Match? | say "at the end of the Match" because it's possible that a Part, say a 1x10 beam, slides into the Goal without
touching any Blocks - but later new Blocks that are Scored are impacted by the presence of the beam. In that scenario,
the Part affected the final score, but not at the moment that it fell into the Goal. Yet another consideration is that the
part(s), even some 1x2 connectors, could potentially prevent even a Height 1 bonus by denying the Blocks contact with
the Floor!

4. This one seems moderately clear. To collect the piece, the Driver must reach into a Goal mid-match and may
touch and affect the position of the Blocks within. There's some fairness issues here: what if the blocks were
carefully stacked or happened to be balanced to achieve a height bonus? What if the Driver's reach into the Goal
causes the Blocks to eventually achieve a height bonus that was otherwise not destined to be? It seems that <G9>
covers this situation: if there's a chance of touching a Block while collecting the Part, the Driver should not risk it.
However, perhaps it'd be prudent to modify <G6> to state (added part in bold):

can be either left on the Field or collected by a Driver (utilizing <G10>). Drivers doing so should be
careful to avoid violating <G9>.

Note that this clarification of the relationship between G6 and G9 affects other scenarios too, for example a Part falling
into the Supply Zone.

Thank you in advance for any guidance.
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Answered by committee

Thank you for your questions. If a part detaches from a Robot and falls into a Goal, it should be left in place and
ignored for scoring.

If the Head Referee determines that the part was intentionally detached in a Score Affecting Violation of rule <G6>, it
should result in a Major Violation and DQ for the Team that detached the part.

If the Head Referee determines that the part was detached accidentally, it's not a Violation of any rule and the Head
Referee does not have to determine whether it was Score Affecting. Head Referees should advise Teams whose
Robots detach parts in Goals to revise their design to prevent future occurrences; repeated incidents may start to
look like an intentional pattern and lead to a Major <G6> Violation and DQ.

Given this, we can address your specific questions:

No.
No.
No.
Yes; the detached part must remain in the Goal until the Match has been Scored.

PwdPE

Accidental damage the Field

13-Oct-2023
S1 G7

<S1> Stay safe, don’t damage the Field. If, at any time, the Robot operation or Team actions are deemed unsafe or have
damaged any Field Elements or Blocks, the offending Team may be Disabled and/or Disqualified at the Head Referee’s
discretion. The Robot will require re-inspection before it may again take the Field.

<G7> Don’'t damage the Field. Robot interactions which damage the Field or any Field Elements are prohibited.
Violation Notes: -In most cases, accidental Field damage should only be considered a Minor Violation / formal warning

Here are two rules related to damaging the field. The problem we face is that the two vertical red VEX 1Q beams in two of
the corners of the supply zone are easily broken. In a match, as we approached the supply zone, we accidentally hit and

broke the red beam. The referee ruled that we damaged the field and caused a change in the score (5 points for partially

parking). Consequently, we received a DQ. However, we believe that we had partially parked before causing the damage
to the Field, and it occurred by accident. It should be considered a minor violation.
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The red beam can fall off just from a light touch. If the team's robot accidentally breaks the red beam while retrieving
blocks in the supply zone or while parking, would it be classified as a minor violation or a major violation?

If considered a major violation, is it due to the rules outlined in <S1>, or is it upgraded to a major violation because of a
minor violation under <G7> that results in a change in score?

Thank you for your reply.

Answered by committee

Because the red beams you've described can easily be knocked loose during normal game play, Head Referees are
encouraged to follow the Violation Notes for rule <G7> and record accidental damage as a Minor Violation. The Head

Referee should encourage Teams to be careful while in proximity to the red beams in order to avoid repeated Minor
Violations.

*In most cases, accidental Field damage should only be considered a Minor Violation / formal warning

The Head Referee has some discretion if they feel the damage was egregious or intentional.

*Egregious, intentional, or repeated accidental / Minor Violations may escalate to a Major Violation at
the Head Referee’s discretion

Where is the Driver Station
13-Oct-2023
G8

Figure 2 has a orange colored line outside of the field but it is not labeled. Is this supposed to be the Drivers Station (DS).
| was at an event where the DS was behind the perimeter where the robots start (between goals | and Il). Is this a safe
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assumption?

[https://content.vexrobotics.com/docs/23-24/vigrc-fullvolume/online-manual/image/TopView-DS.png]

(https://content.vexrobotics.com/docs/23-24/vigrc-fullvolume/online-manual/image/TopView-DS.png)

<G8>

Answered by committee

Yes, the orange line in Figure 2 is the Driver Station.

Clarification on Rule SG3

16-Oct-2023
G8 SG3

<SG3>

The update of Rule SG3 clears up my original question; however, | do have a follow up question. The rule currently says
that if a Block leaves the Field, either the Driver or Referee can return it to the Supply Zone. | assume common sense
applies, but for clarification, if the Driver is not allowed to leave the Driver's Station (Rule G8) and the Block falls out of the

field on the opposite side of the field (out of reach), then the Referee would get the Block and either hand the Block to the
Driver or place it back in the Supply Zone himself/herself?

Answered by committee

In this scenario, the Head Referee could permit the non-active Driver to leave the Driver Station and return a Block to
the Supply Zone.

Drivers returning blocks outside of the field to the supply zone

19-Oct-2023
G8 SG3

<SG3><G8>

SG3 states "Blocks that leave the Field during a match may be returned to the Supply Zone by a Driver or Referee." G8
states "Drivers must remain in their Driver Station, except when legally interacting with their Robot per <G10>." May a
Driver leave their Driver Station to return a block to the Supply Zone? If yes, what actions do they need to take prior to
leaving their Driver Station (i.e., signaling the Head Referee by placing their controller on the ground)?

Answered by committee

Please review the Q&A Usage Guidelines before posting, specifically point 2, "Read and search existing Q&As before

posting.” We believe that that our response to Q&A 1704 answers your question. If it does not, please feel free to
rephrase and resubmit.

New Pneumatics count as motors?

12-Jun-2023
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R12

We were very surprised and excited to see pre-orders open up for the new IQ Pneumatics Kit. Thank you VEX Robotics
for making that possible.

Since it's listed as VIQRC legal, we wondered: does it count in any way towards the 6 motor limit, per <R12>? Or will
there be a separate limit established regarding pneumatics?

Clearly there must be an electric motor inside the pump - so one line of reasoning would count each pump as a single
motor. That could make sense, but we wanted to know for certain. Any clarification here and in the next game manual
release would be appreciated of course. Thank you.

Answered by committee

The rules pertaining to the use of the new VEX 1Q Pneumatics Kit will be included in the June 27 update to the Full
Volume Game Manual.

Pneumatics limitations

12-Jun-2023
R12

<R12> Will there be any limitations to pneumatics? | am assuming it will be similar to VRC with a limit of 2 air tanks /
control units.

Answered by committee

The rules pertaining to the use of the new VEX 1Q Pneumatics Kit will be included in the June 27 update to the Full
Volume Game Manual.

In rule <R15>, are the subsections exemptions?

10-Aug-2023
R15

I've heard conflicting interpretations in conversation with others and was hoping for official clarification.

<R15> Modifications of parts. Parts may NOT be modified unless specifically listed as an exception in this rule. Examples
of madifications include, but are not limited to, bending, cutting, sanding, gluing, or melting.

¢ a. Cutting metal VEX 1Q or VEX V5 shafts to custom lengths.

¢ b. Bending parts which are intended to be flexible, such as string, rubber bands, or thin plastic sheets.
¢ c. Cutting VEX 1Q pneumatic tubing to custom lengths

<R15>

Answered by committee

Thank you for your question! Yes, the subsections of rule <R15> are the permitted exceptions to the rule. This will be
clarified in the next game manual update.
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Can the rubber bands be cut and joined with others? <R15>
11-Sep-2023

R15

<R15>

Can the rubber bands be cut and joined with others? That is to say, doing this to extend the piece and be used in
collectors, for example, <R15> is not very clear at this point.

Answered by committee

Thank you for your question. Rule <R15> provides a full list of the VEX 1Q parts that can be modified for use on
competition Robots. This list does not include rubber bands, which cannot be cut for use on a Robot.

Controller modification with VEX IQ parts

8-Nov-2023
R15

<R15> Can we modify the Gen 2 controller with VEX parts?

Answered by committee

No physical or electrical modifications are legal for the VEX 1Q controller (e.g., drilling, gluing, dismantling, rewiring).
An externally-attached piece (e.qg., scuff controller or other piece that doesn't require alteration of the controller) would
be allowed subject to Head Referee judgment and only if no other rules are violated.

If this does not answer your question, please feel free to rephrase and resubmit.

Pneumatics Tubing

16-Oct-2023
R16

Rule <R16> states:

Pneumatics. Robots using parts from the VEX IQ Pneumatics Kit (228-8795) must satisfy the following
criteria: .... No additional parts that are not included in the VEX 1Q Pneumatics Kit (e.g., unofficial tubing or
fittings).

However, the kits come with very little tubing which is cut into pieces based on robot needs, and it doesn't appear
currently possible to buy more kits or 1Q tubing.

Is it possible to use the V5 black tubing or is it potentially possible to revisit this rule similar to the rubber bands to allow
outside sources of 4mm tubing?

Additionally the legal parts list doesn't show any of the Pneumatics Kit parts or tubing. | assume they are legal based on
the rule book inclusion of them.
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Answered by committee

Is it possible to use the V5 black tubing or is it potentially possible to revisit this rule similar to the
rubber bands to allow outside sources of 4mm tubing?

The black tubing found in the V5 Pneumatics Kit is not compatible with VEX 1Q pneumatics, and is not legal for use.

Legal replacement / additional VEX 1Q Pneumatics Tubing can be found here: https://www.vexrobotics.com/228-
7728.html

Pneumatic tubing

16-Oct-2023
R16

<R16> unofficial tubing?? when we run out or cut tubing wrong where do we get replacement or can we get same 4mm
tubing on amazon? please advise.. vex doesn't offer tubing for iq.

Answered by committee

Please see this similar Q&A post, which we believe answers your question. If it does not, feel free to rephrase and re-
submit.

IQ Pneumatics wires too short

7-Nov-2023
R16

We are experimenting with Pneumatics and find the wires coming with Pneumatics Kit are quite short and this makes it
very hard to attach the Pneumatics system to the robot properly. We found the extension cables available on VEX site but
they are currently not allowed in 1Q, would it be possible to make the extension cables also legal for IQ? <R16>

https://www.vexrobotics.com/extension-cables.html

<R16> Pneumatics. Robots using parts from the VEX IQ Pneumatics Kit (228-8795) must satisfy the following criteria: No
more than two (2) Air Tanks, including any that aren’t connected. No more than (1) Pneumatic Pump, including any that
aren’t connected. No additional parts that are not included in the VEX IQ Pneumatics Kit (e.g., unofficial tubing or fittings).

Answered by committee

No, using an extension cable between the Air Pump and Pneumatic Solenoid would not be legal.

The Pneumatic Solenoid connects to the Robot Brain with a standard VEX IQ Smart Cable, of which any legal length
may be used.

Can robots start away from the field perimeter?

3-Jun-2023
SG1 R4
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Regarding:

e <R4> Starting Configuration:

a. Only be contacting the Floor and/or the Field Perimeter.
and

e <SG1> Pre-match Setup:

Contacting the inside and/or top face of the Field Perimeter wall

The ambiguity around "and/or" is our point of inquiry (dictionary: https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/and%2For):

Based on the definition and our understanding of "and/or", Rule R4 appears to allow contacting the floor without
contacting the perimeter ("or"). Surely the intended conjunction is simply "and" here? Something like:
Be contacting the Floor and the Field Perimeter inside wall or top face.

Rule SG1 seems to be clearer: Must contact the inside or top face. A bot that only touches the top of the wall is not really
materially different than one that only touches the inside wall. Nevertheless, clarification in the Q&A would be appreciated:
it's OK for a bot to only touch the floor + top of wall but not the inside of the wall?

Is it possible that the intended phrasing is something more like:

Contacting the inside face of the Field Perimeter wall. Additional contact with the top face of the Field
Perimeter wall is permitted, but not required.

Thank you for any clarification. Sorry, we obviously have some budding lawyers over here.

Answered by committee

Thank you for your question. Clause A of rule <R4> will be revised to read, "Only be contacting the Floor and the
Field Perimeter" in the next game manual update.

Robot head orientation in starting configuration
22-Jun-2023

SG1 R4

<SG1>

There are no specific starting positions, as long as the above criteria are met. How about robot head orientation in starting
configuration. Is it ok as the following picture shows.


https://www.robotevents.com/storage/game_manual/VIQRC_2023-2024_Full_Volume/rules/R4.html
https://www.robotevents.com/storage/game_manual/VIQRC_2023-2024_Full_Volume/rules/SG1.html
https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/and%2For
https://www.robotevents.com/storage/game_manual/VIQRC_2023-2024_Full_Volume/rules/R4.html
https://www.robotevents.com/storage/game_manual/VIQRC_2023-2024_Full_Volume/rules/SG1.html
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Answered by committee

Provided the robot meets all of the criteria established in <SG1>, including contact with the field perimeter, this would
be a legal starting configuration.

Interaction with Green Cube when Placing Robot in Starting Position

16-Oct-2023
R4

I helped with a tournament this weekend and had some questions about a way a team was placing their robot in the
starting position.

<R4>

This robot is within the 20x11x15 inch starting volume. It is touching the back wall and not touching any game elements. |
believe this is a legal starting position.

Is it legal for the driver to lift the green block up, place the robot, and then return the green block to its position prior to the
start of the match, as long as they put it within legal tolerances and not touching the robot?

If it is not considered legal for the student to pick up the green block and replace it, would it be legal to place this robot in
this starting position if the student is able to maneuver it in such a way that it doesn't touch or disturb the placement of the
green block, even though the block could be considered to be "inside" the robot?


https://www.robotevents.com/storage/game_manual/VIQRC_2023-2024_Full_Volume/rules/SG1.html
https://www.robotevents.com/storage/game_manual/VIQRC_2023-2024_Full_Volume/rules/R4.html

Answered by committee



